
LEELANAU COUNTY PARKS & RECREATION COMMISSION 
Old Settlers Park Committee 

Wednesday, May 3, 2023 – 1:00 p.m. 
Old Settlers Park, 8854 S. Dunns Farm Rd., Maple City, and the 
Leelanau County Government Center, Suttons Bay, Michigan 
https://www.leelanau.gov/meetingdetails.asp?MAId=2518  

 
(Please silence cellular/electronic devices) 

 
(Proceedings of the meeting are being recorded and are not the official record of the meeting.  

The formally approved/accepted written copy of the minutes will be the official record of the meeting.) 
 
 

AGENDA 
Call to Order 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll Call 

Approval of Agenda and Late Additions/Deletions 

Public Comment 

Action Items – 

1. Brief Tour of Old Settlers Park: 
i. Recess Meeting to Government Center (approximately 1:50 p.m.) 
ii. Reconvene Meeting at Government Center (approximately 2:15 p.m.) 

2. Monkeyflower Upkeep, Laurel Voran. 
3. Approval of Minutes – April 4, 2023, Committee Meeting. 
4. Music in the Park Request, Glen Lake Community Reformed Church. 

Public Comment 

Board Member Comment 

Motion to Adjourn 

https://www.leelanau.gov/meetingdetails.asp?MAId=2518


Leelanau County Parks and Recreation Commission 
Old Settlers Park Committee Meeting 

Tuesday, April 4, 2023 – 3:15 p.m. 
Leelanau County Government Center, Suttons Bay, Michigan 

Tentative Minutes – Meeting Recorded 
https://www.leelanau.gov/meetingdetails.asp?MAId=2502 

 

Page 1 of 4 

 
The Old Settlers Park Committee meeting was called to order at 3:16 p.m. by Committee 
Chairman, Charles Godbout.  
 
Committee Chairman Godbout led recitation of the “Pledge of Allegiance.” 
 
Roll Call:   Charles Godbout, Committee Chairman 
    Steve Christensen 

 Melinda Lautner 
 Casey Noonan 
 
Staff Present:    Laurel Evans, Executive Assistant 
 W. Scott Bradley, Maintenance Worker 

   
Guests Present: 
None. 
 
Approval of Agenda and Late Additions/Deletions:  
Request by Lautner to add “Lanham Bench” under Action Items – Item 3 “Review of Proposed 
Fiscal Year (FY) 2023 Projects.” 
 
Motion by Noonan to approve the agenda, as amended. Seconded by Christensen. 
Discussion – None. 
Ayes – 4 (Noonan, Christensen, Godbout, Lautner) 
No – 0           Motion Passes. 
Public Comment: 
None. 
 
Action Items – 
Approval of Minutes – February 14, 2023: 
Motion by Lautner to approve the minutes of February 14, 2023, as amended. Seconded by 
Noonan. 
Discussion – None. 
Ayes – 4 (Lautner, Noonan, Christensen, Godbout) 
No – 0           Motion Passes. 
 
Review of Capital Improvement Program (CIP) Projects: 
Committee Chairman Godbout said he reviewed the park’s master plan and identified the items 
that could potentially be submitted for the CIP and invited input from the group.  

https://www.leelanau.gov/meetingdetails.asp?MAId=2502


Leelanau County Parks & Recreation Commission 
Old Settlers Park Committee – April 4, 2023 

Page 2 of 4 
 

Universal Access Kayak Launch – The group decided not move forward with this project for lack 
of a boat cleaning facility. 

 
(Evans reminded Godbout that CIP items were due on Friday, March 31 (2023). Committee 
Chairman Godbout responded that he advised [Planning/Community Development Director 
Trudy] Galla that Old Settlers Park CIP items would be submitted past the March 31st deadline 
and that she was okay with it. Evans said Galla advised her to timely submit CIP items and 
modify as needed later. Godbout inquired and Noonan confirmed that items not currently in 
the CIP that missed the deadline would not go into this year’s CIP. Godbout said he asked Galla 
if he had a CIP item that was a project for August (2023, for example), could the appropriate 
paperwork be completed and the project added to the CIP after the fact, and Galla said that it 
would be okay.) 

 
Universal Access for Existing Pit Toilet – The pros and cons of the pit toilet versus portable 
toilets versus flush toilets was discussed (safety, maintenance, cost). Bradley mentioned the pit 
toilet is sometimes used as a changing room which would be difficult to do in a portable toilet. 
Christensen suggested incorporating a changing area into a new design. The group decided to 
create two CIP projects; 1) demolition of the pit toilet; 2) install universal access, portable 
toilets/enclosure near gazebo and (eventually) at current location of pit toilet. Christensen 
suggested asking Parks Commission member Jon Walter to draw up plans for an enclosure and 
thought Godbout, Bradley, and Walter could meet at the park to determine location of the 
toilet enclosures. 

 
Potable Water Hydrant – Bradley said the current water hydrant is potable and the water is 
tested four times a year. Bradley displayed a catalog with a bottle filling station. Committee 
Chairman Godbout estimated the project cost at $6,000.00 to $12,000.00 to install a filling 
station and pump and a cement pad.  

 
Reroofing the Gazebo, Vinyl Siding, Vinyl Cladding, Deck, and Stairs – Committee Chairman 
Godbout estimated $30,000.00 for this project. Bradley took roof pictures and Christensen 
commented that the pictures showed that “the roof was functional but rapidly approaching 
nonfunctional.” Discussion followed about the longevity of cedar shakes for roofing. Lautner 
asked if a metal roof might be a better idea, but the group felt metal was inconsistent with the 
esthetics of the park. Noonan said he was going to ask Jeff Parker, who does cedar shakes 
siding, to look at the gazebo.  

 
Motion by Godbout to recommend to the Parks and Recreation Commission to approve 
adding the refurbishment of the Old Settlers Park gazebo to the FY 2024 CIP. Seconded by 
Noonan. 
Discussion – Christensen suggested increasing the project price. Noonan agreed and suggested 
$40,000.00. Evans advised that cost did not need to be included in the CIP because of potential 
price fluctuations before the project commenced.  
Ayes – 4 (Godbout, Lautner, Noonan, Christensen) 
No – 0          Motion Passes. 



Leelanau County Parks & Recreation Commission 
Old Settlers Park Committee – April 4, 2023 

Page 3 of 4 
 

Relocation of Grill Away from Center Road – Uncertain which grill this was, Committee 
Chairman Godbout asked and Bradley responded that it was the grill adjacent to the swing set. 
Godbout wondered how the grill could be moved. Bradley thought it should be completely 
removed. Godbout remarked that if it was a safety hazard, the grill should be removed. 
Christensen commented that people simply use portable grills now. Godbout said the action on 
this project would be to remove the grill, and he asked if Bradley could “put this on your list.” 

 
Improve Signage for Road Circulation – Committee Chairman Godbout thought there was 
$10,000.00 in the 2023 budget to install parking spaces along the park’s circular road and 
Godbout proposed doing this project in conjunction with the improved signage for road 
circulation project (entrance only; exit only; do not enter signs).  Godbout estimated about 20 
signs for the project at $100.00 per sign for a total of $2,000.00. Godbout said he was unsure of 
the scope of work and wondered who could do it. Christensen suggested having Walter include 
this project on the sketch for the portable toilets. Christensen and Lautner thought 20 signs 
were too many and that they did not fit the esthetics of the park. Noonan added that the public 
does not pay attention to the signage, so the signs would more likely be necessary for liability 
reasons. Godbout thought maybe signage was not an issue and that perhaps they should not 
spend money on the project even though it was noted in the park master plan. The group 
agreed that improved signage was not a priority for the park. Discussion followed on 
delineating necessary parking spaces. Godbout said and Noonan concurred this would not be a 
large project to complete. Bradley suggested putting gravel down prior to installing stones. 

 
Committee Chairman Godbout proposed an on-site meeting at the park to perform a walk-
through. Noonan added that depending on the day, Zack Stanz might be able to attend and 
discuss stone placement for the parking spaces. Christensen thought the dock base and stairs 
could be looked at as well. Godbout proposed a 1:00 p.m. meeting prior to the May 3 (2023) 
Parks meeting. Concurrence to conduct a Committee meeting beginning at 1:00 p.m., on May 
3, 2023, at Old Settlers Park and finishing up at the Government Center, around 2:30 p.m. 

 
Possible Future Projects – Committee Chairman Godbout proposed universal access to the 
dock (ramp versus a staircase) as a future project. Christensen noted that a new design would 
have to be planned around the monkey flower plantings. Discussion ensued on appropriate 
walkway grades. Bradley suggested members review the walkway on Arcadia Bluffs. Godbout 
said something to consider might be to pave the graveled parking areas to mitigate annual 
upkeep of the gravel. Lautner added that the split rail fence will eventually need replacement, 
and that eradication of the poison ivy along that fencing might also be a good project.  

 
Review of Proposed Fiscal Year (FY) 2023 Projects – Committee Chairman Godbout said the 
Old Settlers Park Committee will kick off 2023 with the parking space project. Lautner updated 
the group on the status of the Nancy Lanham memorial funds, announcing that a ladybug 
bouncer will be purchased in lieu of a bunny (unable to find a bunny bouncer). Lautner added 
that the family is okay with that decision. The Lanham family would also like to donate a 
“prayer bench” similar to the Binsfeld bench that is in the park. Lautner explained that because 
the bench is not consistent with the style of other benches throughout the park, it would 



Leelanau County Parks & Recreation Commission 
Old Settlers Park Committee – April 4, 2023 

Page 4 of 4 
 

require an exemption. She added that this bench would be a memorial to John and Nancy 
Lanham who were part of the original Old Settlers picnic grounds. The Lanham family is asking 
for approval to do one more non-conforming bench and will cover the entire cost. 
 
Motion by Lautner to recommend to the Parks and Recreation Commission to approve a 
donation from the Lanham family to construct a fieldstone memorial bench at Old Settlers 
Park, pending design approval. Seconded by Godbout/Noonan. 
Discussion – Christensen commented this action was not without precedent. There was 
discussion regarding if there was a previous, similar request for Glen (Noonan, former 
Parks/Road Commission member) that never materialized. Casey Noonan said there was a 
similar request for a bench for Linda Olsen at Myles Kimmerly Park, which resulted in the 
purchase of a standard bench.  
Ayes – 4 (Lautner, Noonan, Christensen, Godbout) 
No – 0          Motion Passes. 

 
Evans advised the group that the motion was missing the cost tied to the construction and 
installation of the bench and asked if Lautner could get a letter from the Lanham family that 
included cost details and that committed to full payment for the bench.  Lautner said she 
already had a letter and would have it available for tomorrow’s full Parks meeting (April 5, 
2023).  
  
Public Comment:  
None. 
 
Board Member Comment:  
None. 
 
Motion to Adjourn: 
Committee Chairman Godbout called for a motion to adjourn. 
 
Motion by Christensen to adjourn. Seconded by Lautner. 
Ayes – 4 (Christensen, Godbout, Lautner, Noonan) 
No – 0          Motion Passes. 
 
Committee Chairman Godbout mentioned he might be late for tomorrow’s full Parks meeting. 
With no further business to come before the committee, the meeting adjourned at 3:55 p.m. 
 
 
______________________________ 
Lori Eubanks, Recording Secretary 



 

 

MICHIGAN MONKEY-FLOWER PRESERVATION 
at OLD SETTLERS’ PARK: 2023 

MICHIGAN MONKEY-FLOWER OVERVIEW: 

• An endangered species, known to grow only in the Grand Traverse region and straits of 
Mackinac: only 21 documented occurrences  

• Scien@fic name:  Mimulus michiganensis (synonym: Erythranthe michiganensis) 

• Endemic to this region, growing best in the unique environment such as is found along 
por@ons of the Big Glen Lake shoreline: mucky soil of stream edges, alkaline environ-
ment (pH 7.66 – 8.21) and cold ( 47 – 62 o F ) flowing water. 

• Semi-aqua@c, herbaceous, perennial, yet evergreen!  (See photos) 

• Habit:  Stems to approx. 15”, trailing horizontally, roo@ng in at each leaf node to form 
low mats of plant colonies. 

• Flowers:  Bright yellow,  resembling snapdragons, heaviest bloom from mid –June thru  
late July  

• Several scholarly professional references site the colonies at Glen Lake as some of the 
largest and healthiest popula@ons.  The vigor of our popula@on is due to the fact that we 
have the perfect environment for it and are ac@vely caring for it, managing compe@@on. 

• Threats: development, encroaching species, changes in hydrology. 

• Educa@onal video about Michigan Monkey Flower, produced by local videographer, is 
available on line at hYps://naturechange.org/2021/12/15/hope-for-michigans-most-en-
dangered-flower/ 

• In-depth informa@on at Michigan Natural Features Inventory:  hYps://mnfi.anr.msu.edu/
species/descrip@on/14943/Mimulus-michiganensis 

Michigan monkey-flower preservation, native restoration & horticultural services

Laurel Voran LLC

PO BOX 33, Empire, MI  49630 

laurelvoran@hotmail.com 

231-632-3211

https://naturechange.org/2021/12/15/hope-for-michigans-most-endangered-flower/
https://naturechange.org/2021/12/15/hope-for-michigans-most-endangered-flower/
https://mnfi.anr.msu.edu/species/description/14943/Mimulus-michiganensis
https://mnfi.anr.msu.edu/species/description/14943/Mimulus-michiganensis
mailto:laurelvoran@hotmail.com


STATUS UPDATE FOR OLD SETTLERS’ MONKEY-FLOWER: 

• Con@nuing to thrive and expand in all the seeps at base of overlook, due to our con@nued ac-
@ve management plan managing compe@ng vegeta@on. 

• Visitors con@nue to show interest in the Monkey flower  and interpre@ve sign s@ll in very good 
condi@on afer 6 years. 

• Transplants moved in 2021, at seep closest to steps,  have grown rapidly, see photos below. 

 

  



PROPOSAL FOR 2023 

Con@nua@on of Michigan monkey flower preserva@on at Old SeYlers’ Park:  Maintain current 
popula@ons, always looking for and opening up new areas appropriate for transplants.   

PROPOSED ROJECT FUNDING AND BUDGET FOR 2023:     

Con@nued unique partnership between county, neighbors, a lake associa@on and a local busi-
ness: 

  $1,440.00 contributed by neighbors and Laurel Voran LLC. ($480 each en@ty) 
  $1000 contributed by Glen Lake Associa@on 
  $960.00 contributed by Leelanau County 

WORK PERFORMED: 

• Manage compe@ng plants: Jewel weed, watercress, Canada thistle, mint, forget-me-not, 
various grasses.  

• Seasonal cutbacks of surrounding area, enhancing view from viewing plaiorm 

• Haul debris off-site 

• Answer ques@ons from visitors regarding  monkey flower  

• Monitor for damage/disease and respond appropriately 

Without our help, the monkey flower would be quickly lost, overwhelmed by more rapidly 
growing vegeta@on.  With our help this rare plant has made a great recovery at Old SeYlers’ 
park and con@nues to expand.  It’s important that we con@nue to protect it and it’s environ-
ment, keeping this ecosystem intact and allowing future genera@ons to learn about and admire 
this endangered species. 

Thank you for considering con@nued support of this important project. 

 

Laurel Voran 

Emma Stafford 

5.3.23

Looking forward to July!



Leelanau County Parks & Recreation Commission 
Regular Session –November 2, 2022 
 

Page 3 of 4 
 

Regarding the paving bid from Elmer’s for the walking trail at Myles Kimmerly Park, Robbins 
commented that the black dirt from digging the trail is valuable and estimated it could be worth 
$40,000, which could defray the paving cost from Elmer’s. Robbins said he would talk with 
Elmer’s about this proposal. 
 
Frerichs discussed the bid for the five-year plan for Myles Kimmerly Park. He said the 
Committee was torn about spending $4,700.00 to “tell us what we already know.” He said 
perhaps the $800.00 left in the budget could be used to defray the cost. Frerichs invited the 
group’s thoughts. Chairman Noonan suggested conducting a committee meeting first to 
determine what the committee wants to pursue. Barrons added that from a committee level, it 
is nice to hear from the full Parks group. Godbout inquired when the last master plan for the 
parks was created. Frerichs responded, 2020 to 2024. In that case, Godbout said they would be 
looking at a revision or review in 2024. Robbins suggested engaging a college intern from Parks 
and Recreation to come up with park plan. Godbout stated that he assumed that the existing 
plan contains action items. He said each action item needs prioritization and a cost analysis in 
preparation for submission to the budget. He encouraged the use of the CIP (Capital 
Improvement Plan) process to get projects considered in the budget. Frerichs said he did not 
feel an intern would have the experience that the Gosling Czubak firm offers. Barrons added he 
felt the Committee was capable of outlining a plan and added that he “was not sure if an 
outside voice was worth $4,700.00.” Frerichs said he will address the issue with the committee 
then come back and update the full Commission. 
 
Old Settlers Park Committee: 
Lanham Donation – Chairman Noonan said that Lautner was spearheading this item and 
thought it should be tabled in her absence. He said he would will follow up with Lautner.  
 
Proposed Celebration of Life (Schilling), July 23, 2023. 
Ms. Moore (under William Harris and son via Zoom) – Evans advised that the family changed 
the date of the celebration of life for Barbara Whiteside Schilling to July 9, 2023. After a brief 
discussion, concurrence by the Parks Commission to allow the temporary installation of two, 
10’ x 10’ pop-up canopies. Evans reminded Ms. Moore that the park does not close to the 
public so it is available on a first-come, first-served basis. Chairman Noonan said the family “has 
our blessing” to go ahead with the memorial celebration. 
 
Budget Request Update (Dock Sections). 
Evans advised the group that Christensen requested this topic to be added to the agenda; 
however, he was not present for the discussion. Evans said the need for new/repair of dock 
sections was questioned at the County Board’s Executive Board meeting and the response from 
someone (Evans did not remember who) was that they were not sure why it was in the budget. 
She thought Lautner would know more about the discussion. Bradley said he was “baffled” by 
the request because the dock sections were in good shape; however, he said the dock stairs 
and approach could use some attention. Chairman Noonan said he mentioned the dock as a 
potential budget item and that the request could be revised. He said he will add the item in the 

LEvans
Highlight

LEvans
Highlight



From: Robert Johnson
To: Laurel Evans
Subject: Re: 2023 Concert - GLCRC
Date: Friday, April 21, 2023 1:01:13 PM

Laurel,

Would you please look at Saturday July 15th as well as a possible date. I should be able to let
you know before your meeting our preferred date.

Thank you,
Robert Johnson

From: Laurel Evans <levans@leelanau.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, April 11, 2023 2:23 PM
To: 'Casey Noonan (NoonanC8@gmail.com)' <NoonanC8@gmail.com>; 'Dave Barrons
(davebarrons@gmail.com)' <davebarrons@gmail.com>; Steve Christensen
<schristensen@leelanau.gov>
Cc: Ty Wessell <twessell@leelanau.gov>; robtjohnson7348@hotmail.com
<robtjohnson7348@hotmail.com>
Subject: 2023 Concert - GLCRC
 
Gentlemen:
 
I will add this to the May 3 Parks Commission agenda for review/approval.
 

Laurel S. Evans
Executive Assistant
Leelanau County Administration
8527 E. Government Center Dr., Suite #101
Suttons Bay, MI 49682

231-256-9711 main

231-256-8101 direct

231-256-0120 fax

E-MAIL CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: The contents of this e-mail message and any attachments are intended solely for the addressee(s) and may contain confidential and/or legally privileged
information. If you are not the intended recipient of this message or if this message has been addressed to you in error, please immediately alert the sender by reply e-mail and then delete
this message and any attachments. If you are not the intended recipient, you are notified that any use, dissemination, distribution, copying, or storage of this message or any attachment is
strictly prohibited.

 

From: Robert Johnson <robtjohnson7348@hotmail.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, April 11, 2023 9:20 AM
To: Laurel Evans <levans@leelanau.gov>
Cc: Ty Wessell <twessell@leelanau.gov>; Casey Noonan <NoonanC8@gmail.com>; 'Dave Barrons
<davebarrons@gmail.com>
Subject: 2023 Concert
 

mailto:robtjohnson7348@hotmail.com
mailto:levans@leelanau.gov


Laurel,
 
The Glen Lake Community Church Men's Group is again planning to host a concert either July
8 or July 14, 2023 at the Old Settlers Campground. Could you please advise if either or both
dates are currently available and if so, send me the forms necessary for us to complete to
begin the process of contracting with the County for this event. We will finalize our date as
soon as we hear back from you.
 
Robert Johnson
Glen Lake Community Church


	2023 Old Settlers proposal Monkeyflower_05032023.pdf
	Looking forward to July!


